
 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

June 20, 2023 

4:30 PM 
 

 

In-Person Meeting 

Location: 

 

Coachella City Hall 

Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street 

Coachella, CA 

If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link: 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86291638284?pwd=NUJQZGNINEIxa09UUzZ1cFZEandrdz09 

 

One tap mobile : +16694449171,,86291638284#,,,,*970236# 

Or Telephone: 

     US: +1 669 900 6833   

Webinar ID: 862 9163 8284 

Passcode: 970236 

Spanish: El idioma español está disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opción en la parte de 

abajo de la pantalla 

 Public comments may be received either in person, via email, telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit 

of 250 words, or three minutes: 

o In Real Time:  

If participating in real time via Zoom or phone, during the Public Comment Period, use the “raise 

hand” function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing 

*9 on the keypad.  

o In Writing:  

Written comments may be submitted to the City Council electronically via email 

to cityclerk@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written 

comments received will be forwarded to the City Council and entered into the record.  

o If you wish, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6240 before 5:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting. 

 The live stream of the meeting may be viewed online by accessing the city's website at 

www.coachella.org, and clicking on the "Watch Council Meetings" tab located on the home page, and 

then clicking on the "live" button. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

1

http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86291638284?pwd=NUJQZGNINEIxa09UUzZ1cFZEandrdz09
mailto:cityclerk@coachella.org
http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda Parks and Recreation Commission June 20, 2023 

Page 2 

 

ROLL CALL:  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another 

date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.” 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2023 of the Parks and Recreation Commission 

PRESENTATIONS: 

2. Park User Fee Schedule Update 

3. Memorandum of Understanding between the City and Sports Leagues Update 

4. Coachella Parks and Recreation Foundation Update 

5. Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League Update 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):  

6. Recommend Approval of the 2023 – 2025 Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Coachella 

and Desert Recreation District.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 

within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.” 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:  

Commissioner Comments  

Public Works Director's Comments  

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

 

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection at the  

City Clerk’s Office at 53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  

City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

 

 

2

http://www.coachella.org/


 

Coachella Corporate Yard, Upstairs Conference Room 

53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

 (760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

MINUTES 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

May 16, 2023 

4:30 PM 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  

The Regular Meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission of the City of Coachella was called to order at 

4:31 p.m. by Commissioner Rosalio Avila. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rosalio Avila. 

ROLL CALL:  

PRESENT:   Commissioner Rosalio Avila, Alternate Commissioner J. Carlos Ayala, Commissioner 

Robert Antonio Caballero, Commissioner Karen Hernandez, Commissioner Andrew 

Gallegos, and Commissioner Marcos Granados Jr. 

ABSENT:   NONE.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Motion:   To approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Made by:   Commissioner Caballero  

Seconded by   Commissioner Hernandez 

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:  

 

AYES:  Commissioner Avila, Commissioner Caballero, Commissioner Hernandez, 

Commissioner Gallegos, and Commissioner Granados Jr.   

 

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None.  

ABSENT:   None 

 

3

Item 1.

http://www.coachella.org/


Minutes Parks and Recreation Commission May 16, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2023, of the Parks and Recreation Commission of the City of 

Coachella, California.  

 

Motion:    To approve the minutes as presented.  

 

Made by:   Commissioner Hernandez 

Seconded by   Commissioner Granados Jr.  

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:  

 

AYES:  Commissioner Avila, Commissioner Caballero, Commissioner Hernandez, 

Commissioner Gallegos, and Commissioner Granados Jr.  

 

NOES:    None.  

ABSTAIN:   None.  

ABSENT:   None 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

2. Nomination for the Position of Chair 

 

Motion:    To Nominate Rosalio Avila to the Position of Chair.  

 

Made by:   Commissioner Gallegos 

Seconded by   Commissioner Caballero 

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:  

 

AYES:  Commissioner Avila, Commissioner Caballero, Commissioner Hernandez, 

Commissioner Gallegos, and Commissioner Granados Jr.  

 

NOES:    None.  

ABSTAIN:   None.  

ABSENT:   None 

3. Nomination for the Position of Vice Chair 

Motion:    To Nominate Marcos Granados Jr. to the position of Vice Chair 

 

Made by:   Commissioner Gallegos 

Seconded by   Commissioner Caballero 

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:  

 

AYES:  Commissioner Avila, Commissioner Caballero, Commissioner Hernandez, 

Commissioner Gallegos, and Commissioner Granados Jr.  

 

4

Item 1.



Minutes Parks and Recreation Commission May 16, 2023 

Page 3 

 

NOES:    None.  

ABSTAIN:   None.  

ABSENT:   None 

4. Coachella Valley Soccer League  

 Presentation by President Manuel Montano 

 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):  

5. Recommend Approval of 2023 - 2025 Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Coachella 

and Desert Recreation District 

Motion:    No motion taken. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 

within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.” 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:  

Commissioner Comments  

Public Works Director's Comments  

ADJOURNMENT:  
There being no further business to come before the Commission, Chair Avila adjourned the meeting at 5:13p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 
 

 

5

Item 1.



 

STAFF REPORT 

6/20/2023 

TO: Parks and Recreation Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director  

SUBJECT: Recommend approval of 2023 – 2025 Memorandum of Understanding between 

the City of Coachella and Desert Recreation District.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Recommend approval of 2023 – 2025 Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 

Coachella and Desert Recreation District. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

For the past eleven years, the Council has approved funding for the following Summer 

Programming: Open Swim Passes, Summer Camp Scholarships, and Movies at the Parks.  City 

Council has approved a Memorandum of Understanding since July 25, 2011, authorizing the 

partnership between the City of Coachella and Desert Recreation District (DRD), which provides 

these programs at the Bagdouma Community Center and city parks.  The collaboration with the 

DRD provides recreational programming available at the various city parks and Bagdouma 

Community Center including: Piano, Guitar, Drums, Teen Social Nights, Baile Folklorico, Fit after 

50, Dance Play and Pretend Ballet, Beginning Ballet, Basketball Training Zone, Summer Art 

Scene, Toddler and Me Fitness, Lindsey’s Full Body Fitness and Tiny Soccer Stars.   

 

The proposed MOU will be for a two-year term, June 1, 2023 - May 31, 2025, and provides  

flexibility for DRD to expand programming as the demand is identified.    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The recommended action has no fiscal impact as these funds were budgeted in the current 

budgeted.   

 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed MOU 

6

Item 6.



MOU BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF COACHELLA AND  

DESERT RECREATION  

DISTRICT FOR  

2023 and 2025 RECREATIONAL PROGRAMMING 

This MOU .is made and entered into this 28th day of June, 2023, by and between 

the CITY of Coachella, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as 

"CITY", and Desert Recreation DISTRICT, a public agency and California Special 

District, hereinafter referred to as "DISTRICT". 
W IT NE SET H:  

WHEREAS, the CITY owns or leases property (including but not limited to ball fields, 

pools and community centers) that are used for parks, recreational, and community 

activities; and, 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is authorized and qualified to provide and administer 
these activities; and, 

WHEREAS, DISTRICT currently provides programs for and operates 

Bagdouma Pool from Memorial Day through Labor Day each year on behalf of 

the CITY; and, 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires the DISTRICT to expand its provision and 

administration of recreational activities and related services on CITY property 

to provide additional benefits to the residents of Coachella, and 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to contract with the DISTRICT to provide the, 

following additional "Summer Programming": Summer Camp Scholarships, 

Movies at the Parks, and Open Swim Passes, and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the DISTRICT to provide "Various 

Recreational Programming" as requested at the Bagdouma Community Center; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises, obligations, 

and covenants hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

1 

7

Item 6.



1. Term: 

The term of this MOU shall commence on Friday, May 23, 2023 and end 

on May 22, 2025. 

A. CITY and DISTRICT, may by written notice, terminate this MOU at 
any time and without cause by giving written notice to the 
CITY/DISTRICT of such termination, and specifying the effective 
date thereof, at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of 
such termination. 

 2. CITY Obligations: 

In consideration of the provision of park and recreation programming as set out 

in Section 3 below, CITY shall make available to DISTRICT the following 

facilities: Bagdouma Pool, Bagdouma Community Center( the multipurpose 

room of the with associated restrooms and attached covered patio), the use of 

Bagdouma Park, Rancho De Oro Park and Dateland Park (all of these 

collectively called the "CITY facilities"). DISTRICT shall not modify such facilities 

or property without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

A. CITY shall be responsible for routine maintenance and the repair and 

upkeep of CITY facilities in order for them to be appropriate for 

DISTRICT's use. 

B. CITY shall pay all utilities and related payments for use of CITY 

facilities, with the exception of field and field lighting use. 

C. CITY shall be responsible for the cost of repair to CITY facilities 

damaged by vandalism or other intentional acts and shall maintain 

insurance or self-insurance which covers such repairs. 

D. CITY shall provide DISTRICT with current emergency 

and maintenance contact information. 

E. CITY shall pay the DISTRICT for the agreed upon Summer Programming 

based upon the cost recovery fees identified in Exhibit A, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 3. DISTRICT Obligations: 

DISTRICT shall be responsible for all costs of providing such programs 

(including but not limited to instructors, supplies, overhead and 

2 

8

Item 6.



administration) and shall be responsible for set up for and clean up after such 
programs. 

A. DISTRICT shall operate and manage the Summer Programming, Adult 

Recreation Programming and Various Recreational Programming as described 

in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The 

identified Programming offers recreational activities and events for various ages 

and interests at: Bagdouma Pool, Bagdouma Community Center, Bagdouma 

Park, Dateland Park and Rancho De Oro Park. 

B. DISTRICT will provide all Programming at the agreed upon costs identified in 

Exhibit A. 

C. The DISTRICT may request to provide additional programming and for such 

programming shall determine, collect and retain user fees in order to fund such 

programs and activities initiated by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT shall be 

responsible for any and all bad debts or collections of such fees. DISTRICT 

shall provide a current copy of user fees to CITY. The DISTRICT must obtain 

a facility use permit for all programming at City facilities. 

D. DISTRICT shall program, staff and operate Bagdouma Pool from the Friday 

proceeding Memorial Day through Labor Day. 

E. District shall ensure users of the CITY's Summer Programming are CITY 

residents. 

F. DISTRICT shall provide other services requested by the CITY at an additional 

cost consistent with DISTRICT's cost recovery policy. Such services may include 

programming, administration, coordination and reservation management, or 

maintenance. 

G. DISTRICT shall provide CITY with current emergency and maintenance 

contact information. 

H. Non-Discrimination: Recreation programs and services shall be provided in 

accordance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations, without 

discrimination as to protected categories. 

I. DISTRICT will help promote the all Programming, identified in Exhibit B, 

through its available media outlets and relationships. 

J. DISTRICT will invoice the CITY for the agreed upon Summer Programming, as 

identified in Exhibit A, and provide enrollment/user information for each 

program to substantiate the invoiced amounts. 

3 

9

Item 6.



Invoiced amount will be based upon authorized enrollments per City funded 

program and will not exceed City allocated per program budget unless 

nutheriEcd by the City Manager or his/her designee. 

K. DISTRICT will pay CITY all user fees for any field and/or field light use needed 

for Programming and identified in facility use permit. 

4. Insurance: 

The CITY and DISTRICT each shall procure and maintain, at each's sole expense, for 

the duration of this MOU, commercial general liability insurance or self-insurance against 

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 

connection with the performance of this MOU by the CITY or DISTRICT respectively, or 

by their agents, representatives, employees and authorized volunteers. General liability 

insurance shall be provided in the amount of not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) 

combined single limit personal injury and property damage. Each party shall furnish the 

other with original endorsements naming the other as an additional named insured under 

such policy. Such insurance shall be primary as to the other party. 

Each party shall cover its employees under workers compensation as required by law. 

5. Independent Contractor: 

The DISTRICT is an independent contractor hereunder, responsible for the provision 

of services without direction or control by CITY. The employees of DISTRICT shall not 

be deemed to be or to become employees of CITY as a result of this MOU. 

6. Amendments: 

Any amendment, modification, or variation from the terms of this MOU shall be in writing 

and shall be effective only upon approval by the DISTRICT's authorized representative 

and the CITY's authorized representatives. 

7. Notice: 

All notices or demands of any kind served by either party to this MOU by the other will 

be in writing and will be personally delivered or mailed by registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested addressed as follows: 

4 

10

Item 6.



 

City Manager   CITY of 

Coachella              

53462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA 

General Manager 
Desert Recreation 

DISTRICT 

45-305 Oasis Street 

Indio, California 92201  

8. Litigation Costs: 

In the event an action is filed by either party to enforce any rights or obligations 

under this MOU, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable 

attorney's fees and court costs in addition to any other relief granted by the court. 

9. Authority to Execute MOU: 

Both the CITY and the DISTRICT covenant that each individual executing 

this MOU on behalf of each party is a person duly authorized. 

10. Indemnification: 

The CITY hereby agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel of DISTRICT's 

choice) and save the DISTRICT harmless from and against any and all losses, 

claims, actions, fines, penalties, demands, damages, liability and expenses, 

including attorneys' fees, in connection with loss of life, personal injury or 

damage to property, arising from or out of any occurrence in, upon, or at the 

facilities named hereunder or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or failure 

to act by the CITY, its agents, contractors, employees or servants., except that 

arising from the sole negligence or misconduct of DISTRICT. 

The DISTRICT hereby agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel of CITY's 

choice) and save the CITY harmless from and against any and all losses, claims, 

actions, fines, penalties, demands, damages, liability and expenses, including 

attorneys' fees in connection with loss of life, personal injury, and damage to 

property arising from or out of the provision of recreation services hereunder 

or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or failure to act by the CITY, its 

agents, contractors, employees or servants, except that arising from the sole 

negligence or misconduct of CITY. 

11. Entire MOU: 

This writing constitutes the entire MOU of the parties with respect to the 

subject matter herein and may not be modified or amended except by a 

written MOU executed by both parties. 

12. No Waiver: 

5 

11

Item 6.



No waiver of any term or condition or default hereunder will be considered valid unless 

in writing, and no such waiver will be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or 

default of the same or similar nature. 

13. Counterpart: 

This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which if taken 

together will be deemed an original. 

WHEREAS IN WITNESS THEREOF, the CITY and DISTRICT hereby execute and 

enter into this Memorandum of Understanding with the intent to be bound 

thereby through their authorized representatives whose signatures are affixed 

below. 

City of Coachella: Desert Recreation District 

By:   _____________________________________ By:  

Gabriel D. 

Martin, PhD 

City Manager 

Attest: 

By: ___________________________________ 

City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 
 

 

  

Kevin Kalman 

General Manager 

6 

By: 

 City Attorney 

12

Item 6.



EXHIBIT A 
2023 and 2025 PROGRAMMING COST RECOVERY FEES 

The below are estimated costs per enrollment and event. These line item 

allocations can be shifted with the concurrence of the City Manager, or his/her 

designee, so long as the total allocation is not exceeded. The DISTRICT may 

not shift these line item allocations without prior written approval of the City 

Manager or his/her designee. 

CITY COSTS: $ 16,800.00 

 Summer Camp Scholarships: three-three week 

sessions Budget: $10,800; 

 Ages served — 5-12 

Residents served = up to 90 

 Full Cost per 3 week session: $360.00 

 An approved scholarships will provide for $120.00 off each session price; 

City cost per approved scholarship will total $120.00 per session.  

 A child can qualify for each 3 week summer camp session.   

 Movies in the Park: Budget: $9,000 (eight movies shown) 

 Ages served — all ages 
 Residents served = 2,800 (estimate based on last year's attendance) 

 A total of 8 movie showings to start at dusk on Friday nights in May and 

October at Bagdouma Park. 

 Open Swim Passes: provides all CITY residents free access to Bagdouma Pool 
during open swim. 

Budget: $6,000.00  

 Ages served — all ages 

PROGRAMS OFFERED AT NO COST: 

 Fit After 50 

 Teen Program/Teen Social Nights 

 Halloween Carnival 

 Eggstravaganza  

 Hearts and Crafts  

 Prom Dress Giveaway 

 Move and Play Fitness 

 Cookies with Mrs. Claus 

 Kids in the Kitchen 

 Loteria Nights  

 Senior/Adult/Youth Nutritional Classes 

13

Item 6.



EXHIBIT B 

PROGRAMMING DESCRIPTIONS 

These line item programs can be adjusted with the concurrence of the City Manager, or 

his/her designee. The DISTRICT may not shift these line item allocations without prior 

written approval of the City Manager or his/her designee. 

 Summer Camp Scholarships — Day camp programming provided out of the 

Bagdouma Community Center for ages 5-12. The camp runs from June to 

August; three week sessions that run from 7:30 am to 6 pm, Monday through 

Friday. Movies at the Parks — a total of seven movie nights. Movies will be shown 

at Rancho De Oro Park. 

 Open Swim Passes — All Coachella Residents are provided free use of the 

Bagdouma Pool during the summer months (commencing after Memorial Day 

Weekend and ending Labor Day weekend); funding permitting. The open swim 

hours are between 12 pm to 4 pm and 7 pm to 9pm; during the identified months 

the pool is operated and staffed by the DISTRICT. 

Various Additional Recreational Programming - includes Free and Cost Recovery 

based programming provided by the DISTRICT at the Bagdouma Community 

Center, Bagdouma Pool and Bagdouma Park. 

 

8 

14

Item 6.


	Top
	Item 1.	Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes of Regular Meeting of May 16, 2023
	05.16.2023 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes

	Item 6.	Recommend Approval of the FY 2023-2025 Desert Recreation District Memorandum of Understanding
	P&R Agenda Staff Report
	MOU 2023 - Desert Recreation District

	Bottom

